
BUCKLEY CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
Tuesday, November 25, 2025, at 6:00 P.M. 
Multi-Purpose Center, 811 Main Street 
Next Ordinance #13-25, Next Resolution #25-07, Next Agenda Bill #25-058 
Or Via Zoom: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83366597529?pwd=N2hMTmh5eEZ4TGpJd2dpbFp0cnkvdz09 
Call-in Number: 253-215-8782 
Meeting ID: 833 6659 7529    Meeting Passcode: 863441 

A. CALL TO ORDER
1. Pledge of Allegiance
2. Roll call
3. Agenda Modifications
4. Announcements, Appointments and Presentations

B. PUBLIC COMMENTS - Time Limit of Three Minutes (Citizens wishing to speak are Encouraged to sign
up at City Hall by Wednesday prior to the Council Meeting)

C. COMMITTEE REPORTS
1. Mayor’s Report Burkett 

D. CONSENT AGENDA
a. Approve Minutes of July 2, 2024, City Council Study Session
b. Approve Minutes of December 3, 2024, City Council Study Session
c. Approve Minutes of October 14, 2025, City Council Meeting
d. Approve Minutes of October 28, City Council Meeting

E. REGULAR AGENDA

1. PUBLIC HEARINGS
a. 2025-2026 Mid-Biennial Budget Update

2. ORDINANCE
a. ORD No. ___-25: Amending BMC Repealing Chapter 2.99

F. STAFF REPORTS
1. LTAC Funding Discussion
2. City Administrator Update

G. PUBLIC COMMENTS - Time Limit of Three Minutes

H. COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS & GOOD OF THE ORDER

I. ADJOURNMENT

City Council Agenda Packet - 11/25/2025 1



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

B. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

City Council Agenda Packet - 11/25/2025
 

2



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

C. COMMITTEE REPORTS 

City Council Agenda Packet - 11/25/2025
 

3



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

D. CONSENT AGENDA 

City Council Agenda Packet - 11/25/2025
 

4



 

City Council Study Session – July 2, 2024 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
STUDY SESSION 

July 2, 2024 
 
ATTENDEES:  Mayor Burkett, Council members Smith, Arsanto, Anderson, Bender, Burbank, Green, 
and Bergerson. 
 
Also in attendance were:  City Administrator Brunell, Police Chief Alfano, Public Works Director Banks, 
Senior Planner Farnsworth, Police Records Clerk Burkett, and City Clerk Zumek 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Smith called the regularly scheduled meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 
 
DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
Police Department Staffing 
Chief Alfano shared that the Admin/Finance/Public Safety Committee had met a couple of months ago 
and reviewed staffing and succession planning.  Chief stated that we have lost two officers and hired one 
but in the very near future we could be in dire straits due to retirements in the next year. He shared that 
if we don’t get in front of this, we will have more officers leave as they will be worked too much here.  He 
also shared that the City may have issues when it comes to recruiting new officers as we are unable to 
offer the same pay and bonuses being offered by neighboring agencies.  Chief also shared that we do have 
qualified candidates but it can take up to a year to get them ready for independent service. He also stated 
that he currently knows of at least one officer that will be retiring within the next year so he would like to 
bring someone on now so they are ready to go when this retirement happens.  He shared that he does 
have money in his budget do cover this position.   He shared another option would be to try and retain 
the officers we currently have by offering a retention bonus.  For eight officers, we could offer a $2,500 
retention bonus for being loyal to Buckley. This would let them know they are appreciated and the Police 
budget is able to absorb this cost as well. 
 
Council member Smith shared that he has been thinking about this as well and he is fully supportive of a 
retention bonus and considering increasing longevity pay. He also asked if it was possible to hire someone 
and get them started training in Buckley before they can get into the academy. 
 
Council member Green questioned whether $2,500 would be enough to keep Officers in Buckley. Chief 
Alfano shared that he thinks that it would be. 
 
Council member Green asked if there were any Professional Development opportunities we could offer 
to the Officers as an incentive. 
 
Council member Bender shared that she does not feel that the $2,500 is enough and further discussion 
should be had. 
 
Council member Burbank shared that she would recommend $5,000. 
 
Council member Bender agreed with Council member Burbank that $5,000 was a good amount.  
 
Council member Smith shared that he is supportive of the $5,000 and would like to explore the 
opportunity of a hiring bonus. 
 

City Council Agenda Packet - 11/25/2025
 

5



 

City Council Study Session – July 2, 2024 
 
 

City Administrator Brunell confirmed that Council was consensus was to move forward with the $5,000 
retention bonus at this time and it will be brought forward with other mid-year budget adjustments. 
 
Comp Plan Update 
City Administrator Brunell shared that the goal during this discussion today is to get clear direction on 
where we are going to include affordable housing and commercial developments.  Senior Planner 
Farnsworth shared what we currently have for land use maps and what we recommend for current zoning 
maps.  We are asking if we want to extend the 410 buffer or put a moratorium on storage units or should 
we consider a standalone industrial zone. There are options to combining the corridor to mixed use the 
problem with this would be we still need higher density zoning.  We could consider upzoning.   City 
Administrator Brunell shared a few other options. 
 
Council held a discussion on all available options.  City Administrator Brunell also shared that if we don’t 
comply with the recommendations to updating the plan, we would be ineligible for grant funding. Council 
would like to look at this further at another Study Session but they did have consensus on considering a 
moratorium on storage units. 
 
Council Member Comments and Good of the Order 
Mayor Burkett shared that the 2024 Log Show Bull of the Woods Gene Rawson passed away on Saturday. 
 
Council member Smith shared that it was great to see so many people at the Log Show, he is hoping it had 
a high level financial impact for the City. 
 
Council member Anderson asked how we can get the bleachers at the Log Show grounds fixed.  Mayor 
Burkett shared that they are getting updated each year until all of them have been replaced. 
 
Council member Bergerson thanked staff for the flashing stop signs at A Street and Main. 
 
Council member Burbank stated that the bright green crosswalks look great and she would still like to see 
one in front of the School District office. 
 
With nothing further, the Study Session was adjourned at 7:47 PM. 
 

 

             
City Administrator                                                                                   Mayor 

 
 

Prepared by: Treva Zumek, City Clerk 

  

City Council Agenda Packet - 11/25/2025
 

6



 

City Council Study Session – December 3, 2024 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
STUDY SESSION 

December 3, 2024 
 
ATTENDEES: Council members Smith, Green, Arsanto, Burbank, Anderson and Bergerson.  
 
Also in attendance were Mayor Burkett, City Administrator Brunell, Public Works Director Banks, Director 
of Parks and Recreation Snodgrass, Senior Planner Farnsworth, Police Chief Alfano and Deputy City Clerk 
Clark.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Smith called the regularly scheduled meeting to order at 6:00 PM.  
 
Potential Pump Track Donation: 
Jalen Johansen of Johansen Construction spoke to the Council regarding the generous proposed donation 
of a pump track to the City of Buckley near the Foothills Trail parking lot.  Mr. Johansen told Council that 
the city could really utilize this and it is something that is becoming more popular and could be viable for 
the city.  Council members asked questions and Mr. Johansen and City Administrator Brunell responded.  
The Council thanked Mr. Johansen for the donation.  Next step will be to have Council approve a MOU.  
 
Comp Plan: 
Senior Planner Farnsworth updated Council on the revision of the Comprehensive Plan, these revisions 
include draft ordinance, Letter from Puget Sound Regional Council, updated pages of Volume 1 and 
Comprehensive Plan appendix (Volume 2).  Mr. Farnsworth stated we are very close to adopting the Comp 
Plan next Tuesday at the City Council meeting.  The Council and Mr. Farnsworth discussed the updates. 
Council member Arsanto reminded Council that Planning Commission has been working on this for over 
a year.  
 
Taxes, Rates & Fees: 
Public Works Director Banks explained that in general everything in the colored font in the taxes, rates 
and fees schedule was increased by 5% with an exception to the changes in building fees and that will 
increase by 10%.  This was after our contracted building inspector pointed out that our current fees are 
way too low.  Mr. Banks explained the changes in detail to the Council.  
 
Draft Camping Ordinance: 
City Administrator Brunell brought forward a no camping ordinance and stated that this is the third time 
the Council has reviewed this.  The ordinance prohibits camping and personal storage in parks and open 
spaces.  The ordinance will be added to the agenda for next week’s City Council meeting.   
 
Draft CLG Ordinance: 
City Administrator Brunell explained to Council that this is the first time they have reviewed it.  This is the 
first step for our city to become a Certified Local Government and supports the Council’s goal in preserving 
Buckley’s identity.  The Citizens Advisory Commission was tasked with assisting in the establishment of 
Buckley’s first Historic Preservation Ordinance. The Council received the draft ordinance, and a Dept. of 
Archaeology and Historic Preservation handout titled “Benefits of Becoming a Certified Local 
Government”, which includes grant opportunities, technical assistance and community incentives. Council 
member Anderson that is on the Citizens Advisory Commission stated that the commission has worked 
very hard on this. 
 
 
 

City Council Agenda Packet - 11/25/2025
 

7



 

City Council Study Session – December 3, 2024 
 

Fire Protection Impact Fees: 
City Administrator Brunell stated that Fire Chief Skogen has brought forward the needs for the Buckley 
Fire Dept. The City of Buckley is experiencing tremendous growth that will continue to result in an increase 
in Fire and Emergency Medical Services.  The 2024-2044 Comprehensive Plan projects an additional 1,260 
housing units being added for a population target of 8,235. Staff recommend the Council consider 
assessing fire impact fees from applicants seeking approvals for any development activity in the City for 
which building permits are required.  Next steps will be rate recommendation and draft ordinance in early 
2025. 
 
Park Impact Fees: 
Director of Parks and Recreation Snodgrass stated to Council that the park impact rate study has not been 
updated since 2016.  This can be brought forward to Council this month, but if Council wants to look 
further into this more than it can wait until January.  We currently do charge impact fees, and the updated 
rates will only apply to new development.  City of Buckley’s impact fees are quite a bit lower than some 
neighboring cities and City of Enumclaw and City of Orting are going through making the same 
adjustments.  Park impact fees will be brought forward to Council at next weeks City Council meeting.   
 
City Council Comments: 
Council member Burbank asked for the status on Miller Park and Ms. Brunell said that they haven’t heard 
anything new since the Council met last time.  The city has received two of four grants, the project will be 
in three phases and the first phase is almost totally funded.   
Council member Burbank also wanted to ask why there is more than one person doing meter reads and 
Public Works Director responded that he would look further into this. 
 
With nothing further, the Study Session was adjourned at 7:23 PM.  
 

 

             
City Administrator                                                                                   Mayor 

 

 

Prepared by: Jessica Clark   

 

City Council Agenda Packet - 11/25/2025
 

8



 

City Council Minutes –October 14, 2025 1 
  
 

  
 

City Council 
October 14, 2025 

 
Mayor Burkett called the regularly scheduled meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 
 
Upon roll call the following members were present: Smith, Anderson (via Zoom), 
Arsanto, Bergerson, Bender (via Zoom), and Green. 
 
Also present were: Interim City Administrator Banks, Asst. Police Chief Northam, 
Finance Director Hines, Police Records Clerk Burkett, and City Clerk Zumek. 
 
Mayor Burkett asked if there were any other additions, deletions, or changes to the 
agenda. 
 
Council member Arsanto moved to excuse Council member Burbank. Council member 
Green seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 
Council member Arsanto moved to approve the agenda as presented.  Council 
member Bergerson seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 
Announcements, Appointments, and Presentations: 
 
State of the Library Update – Gretchen Caserotti – Ms. Caserotti provided a State of the 
Library update.  She shared all the programs and services the library has to offer. 
 
2024 Audit Entrance Conference 
Courtney Amonsen from the State Auditor’s office introduced the team members that 
will be performing the 2024 Audit for the City of Buckley.  They reviewed the audit 
process and the items they would be looking at.  They also shared resources that the 
Auditor’s office offers free of charge. They also shared that they are always available to 
answer any questions. 
 
CITIZEN PARTICIPATION  
 
Carolyn Harding – Ms. Harding shared that the Buckley Chamber is winding down their 
year of events. On October 25th they will have Trick or Treat on Main Street from 4:00 
PM – 6:00 PM. There will also be the Holiday Tree Lighting and Holiday Market on Main 
Street on November 29th. The Chamber Christmas party will be on December 17th 
hosted by the Wellhouse. The Chamber will also be hosting the Merry & Bright 
competition this year and they are hoping that City Hall will participate. 
 

City Council Agenda Packet - 11/25/2025
 

9



 

City Council Minutes –October 14, 2025 2 
  
 

Bill Davis – Mr. Savis states that he lives outside the city limits of Buckley but wanted to 
share that he had met with Representative Schrier and that she does great things for 
veterans coming home with a welcome, certificate and other items.  Anyone interested 
should contact the Issaquah office at 425-657-1001. 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
Mayor’s Report:  Mayor Burkett gave a brief update on the bridge closure and ridership 
numbers for the Pierce Transit Shuttle. 
 
Planning Commission: Council member Arsanto shared that the Planning Commission 
reviewed the same items that Council had reviewed at their Study Session so he had 
nothing to report. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Council Member Arsanto moved to approve the Consent Agenda.  Council member 
Green seconded the motion. Motion carried. 
 

Approve Minutes of June 10, 2025, City Council Meeting 
Approve Minutes of July 8, 2025, City Council Meeting 
Approve Minutes of July 22, 2025, City Council Meeting 
 
Claim check numbers 70072 through 70143 in the amount of $185,448.71 for 
September 10, 2025, through September 23, 2025; Payroll check numbers 41987 
through 42088 in the amount of $170,159.29 and ACH Payroll in the amount of 
$504,661.36; and Claim check numbers 70144 through 70207 in the amount of 
$371,824.23 for September 24, 2025, through October 14, 2025, are hereby 
approved and ordered paid this 14th day of October 2025. 

 
REGULAR AGENDA 
 
ORD No. 09-25: Amending BMC 2.285.100(5) Judge Pro Tem 
Council member Arsanto moved to Adopt Ordinance No. 09-25 Amending BMC 
2.285.100(5) Judge Pro Tem.  Council member Green seconded the motion.  Upon roll 
call vote, motion carried 6/0. 
 
STAFF REPORTS  
 
3rd Quarter Fire Department Activity Report: Mayor Burkett shared that Fire Chief’s 
Skogen’s report was included in the Council packet and he was unable to be present at 
tonight’s meeting. 
 

City Council Agenda Packet - 11/25/2025
 

10



 

City Council Minutes –October 14, 2025 3 
  
 

City Administrator Update -  Interim City Administrator Banks shared a memo from Erin 
with data regarding pedestrian bridge usage and the Shuttle usage. He also shared that 
staff is working on the 2026 Legislative Priorities that will come to Council in November.  
He finished up with letting everyone know that Public Works has finished the street 
striping. 
 
Council Member Comments & Good of the Order:  
Council Member Smith commented that the Mason Street project looks outstanding as 
does the street striping. 
 
Council member Arsanto moved to adjourn.  Council member Smith seconded the 
motion.  Motion carried. 
 
With nothing further, the meeting was adjourned at 6:55 PM. 
 
 
 
 
Mayor       City Administrator 
 
 
Prepared by: Treva Zumek, City Clerk 
 
 

City Council Agenda Packet - 11/25/2025
 

11



 

City Council Minutes –October 28, 2025 1 
  
 

City Council 
October 28, 2025 

 
Mayor Pro Tem Smith called the regularly scheduled meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 
 
Upon roll call the following members were present: Smith, Arsanto, Burbank, Bergerson, 
and Green. 
 
Also present were: Interim City Administrator Banks, Parks & Rec Director Snodgrass, 
Police Chief Alfano, Firefighter Smith, and City Clerk Zumek. 
 
Council member Burbank moved to excuse Council members Bender and Anderon.  
Council member Arsanto seconded the motion. Motion carried. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Smith asked if there were any other additions, deletions, or changes to 
the agenda. 
 
Council member Arsanto moved to approve the agenda as presented.  Council 
member Bergerson seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 
CITIZEN PARTICIPATION  
 
Shawn McArthur – Mr. McArthur shared that he would like to see speed bumps 
installed between Jefferson and Main on C Street.  He shared that there are eight 
families that play outside on that street and it has become very unsafe with 
substantially more traffic. 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
Parks & Community Services Committee: Council member Green shared that the 
Committee met and received a budget update that the full Council will see at the Study 
Session. 
 
PCRC Update – Council member Green shared that they met last Thursday and that they 
discussed new policies that would affect UGAs. There is new legislation that would 
possibly allow for a swap of UGA instead of banking it.  They are not sure how all of that 
would work yet so there will be more discussion on this item.  Also if you have anything 
you would like him to share regarding the Legislative Priorities, please don’t hesitate to 
reach out. 
 
Development Services, Utilities & Transportation Committee: Council member Arsanto 
shared that the Committee met last Tuesday and they received a budget update.  They 

City Council Agenda Packet - 11/25/2025
 

12



 

City Council Minutes –October 28, 2025 2 
  
 

also were made aware that the Vac truck is moving faster than expected and should be 
coming sometime in March. 
 
Admin/Finance/Public Safety Committee: Mayor Pro Tem Smith shared that the 
Committee met and received a budget update. 
 
Planning Commission: Council member Arsanto shared that the Commission is 
continuing to work on Code updates. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Council Member Arsanto moved to approve the Consent Agenda.  Council member 
Burbank seconded the motion. Motion carried. 
 

Approve Minutes of May 6, 2025, City Council Study Session 
 
REGULAR AGENDA 
System Access and Use Agreement (SAA) Between Pierce County and City of Buckley 
Council member Arsanto moved to Approve the System Access and Use Agreement 
Between Pierce County and the City of Buckley. Council member Green seconded the 
motion.  Motion carried.  
 
STAFF REPORTS  
 
Youth Center Annual Report: Parks & Rec Director Snodgrass provided the Council with 
an annual report from the Youth Center.  She shared that staff is doing a great job 
creating partnerships within the community.  She also shared that pre-Covid, the Youth 
Center was seeing around 20-25 kids a day and 30-40 on a busy day; now the Youth 
Center is seeing approximately 50-60 kids a day and 40 is considered a slow day. 
 
Quarterly Public Safety Update: Police Chief Arsanto shared that his report was 
included in the packet and he would be happy to answer any questions.  He also shared 
that stats are down a little bit with the bridge closure.  He also shared that he is having 
Officers do extra emphasis on side streets. 
 
City Administrator Update: Interim City Administrator Banks wanted to share his thanks 
to Police, Fire and Public Works for all of their hard work during the storm.  Several trees 
fell on the trail and they are working on getting those all cleaned up. 
 
Council Member Comments & Good of the Order:  
Council member Green asked if any studies had been done on C Street?  Interim City 
Administrator Banks shared that the City Engineer is looking at all of the side streets and 
what options we have. 

City Council Agenda Packet - 11/25/2025
 

13



 

City Council Minutes –October 28, 2025 3 
  
 

 
Mayor Pro Tem Smith shared that with the explosion of e-bikes and e-motorcycles, he 
would like to explore language in the Code that would prohibit them from riding on 
sidewalks. 
 
Council member Arsanto moved to adjourn.  Council member Green seconded the 
motion.  Motion carried. 
 
With nothing further, the meeting was adjourned at 6:24 PM. 
 
 
 
 
Mayor       City Administrator 
 
 
Prepared by: Treva Zumek, City Clerk/HR Administrator 
 
 

City Council Agenda Packet - 11/25/2025
 

14



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

D. REGULAR AGENDA 

City Council Agenda Packet - 11/25/2025
 

15



City Council Agenda Packet - 11/25/2025
 

16



City Council Agenda Packet - 11/25/2025
 

17



City Council Agenda Packet - 11/25/2025
 

18



City Council Agenda Packet - 11/25/2025
 

19



City Council Agenda Packet - 11/25/2025
 

20



City Council Agenda Packet - 11/25/2025
 

21



City Council Agenda Packet - 11/25/2025
 

22



 
City Council Agenda Packet - 11/25/2025

 
23



 
City Council Agenda Packet - 11/25/2025

 
24



 
City Council Agenda Packet - 11/25/2025

 
25



 
City Council Agenda Packet - 11/25/2025

 
26



 
City Council Agenda Packet - 11/25/2025

 
27



 
City Council Agenda Packet - 11/25/2025

 
28



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

E. STAFF REPORTS 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 11/25/2025

 
29


	City Council Agenda - 11.25.2025
	B. PUBLIC COMMENTS
	C. COMMITTEE REPORTS
	D. CONSENT AGENDA
	City Council Study Session Minutes 07-02-2024 (Draft)
	City Council Study Session Minutes 12-03-2024 (Draft)
	City Council Minutes 10-14-2025 (Draft)
	City Council Minutes 10-28-2025 (Draft)
	E. REGULAR AGENDA
	Regular Agenda Item 1 Budget Public Hearing
	Regular Agenda Item 2 (Repeal BMC 2.99 Buckley Hall)
	F. STAFF REPORTS



